MINUTES
WARRICK COUNTY DRAINAGE BOARD

MARCH 9, 2009

2:30 P.M.

The Warrick County Drainage Board met in regular session with President Tim Mosbey presiding over the meeting. Present at this meeting were Tim Mosbey, President; Art Noffsinger, Vice-President; Bobby Howard, Director of Storm Water; Phillip H. Baxter, Surveyor; David K. Zengler, Attorney and Rod Madden, Deputy Surveyor.

Minutes were recorded and transcribed by Cheryl D. Embry.

Present in the audience were Jerry Aigner, Kenny Elliott, Henry Bigge

Commissioner Mosbey called the meeting to order and asked everyone to stand to do the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Tim Mosbey: The first item on the agenda for the Drainage Board March 9, 2009 is the approval of the minutes from February 23, 2009. Are there any questions or comments?

Art Noffsinger: I have no comments, I move that we approve the minutes.

Tim Mosbey: I second that.

Motion was made and seconded to approve minutes. Motion carried 2-0.

BID OPENING:

BLUEGRASS CREEK:

Tim Mosbey: Next on the agenda is the opening of bids for Bluegrass Creek.

David K. Zengler: I have 5 bids for Bluegrass Creek, from Elliot’s Excavating, to reconstruct 1,970 linear feet of Bluegrass Creek South of Elberfeld total cost of $28,800.00.

Ray Stradtner Excavating, Inc. reconstruct and clear silt total bid of $23,870.00.

Bigge Excavating bid for Bluegrass Creek total cost for 1,970 feet $12,805.00.
Jerry Aigner Construction bid price of $24,900.00.

Vieira Brothers Excavating, excavation of Bluegrass Creek $22,600.00.

That is all the bids I have for Bluegrass Creek.

Tim Mosbey: What do we normally do here, take the low bid?

Art Noffsinger: Before we do that I have a question, we’ve got 5 different companies that proposed bids and 4 out of the 5 are consistent, one came about 50% of everyone else, can we look at the bids and make sure they got everything?

Rod Madden: Mr. Bigge is here is you want to ask him questions.

Phil Baxter: Everybody was at the pre-bid meeting.

Art Noffsinger: I would say personally for myself before I awarded the bid I would like to take a look at the bids to make sure they were covered.

Tim Mosbey: What is your time table?

Phil Baxter: It will be two weeks before we meet again unless you want to do it Friday.

Art Noffsinger: I can take them with me and do it Friday, I just want to make sure that we’re not missing something.

Phil Baxter: Okay, you want to have a meeting Friday?

Art Noffsinger: We are having a meeting Friday.

Phil Baxter: I mean a Drainage Board meeting.

Art Noffsinger: Can we do that after the Commissioner’s Meeting?

Phil: Before or after is fine with me.

Tim Mosbey: Commissioner’s meeting is scheduled for 8:00 a.m. is that right?

Art: Right

Tim Mosbey: Do you want to do it at 7:30 or after the meeting?

Art: I would rather do it after the Commissioner’s Meeting?

Tim: Is that all right with you?

Phil: Fine, what do you have on the meeting, do you know about how long?

Art: About an hour, is that all right? I move that we hold off on picking a contractor until Friday’s meeting at 9:00 a.m.

Tim: Second

Motion was made and seconded. Motion passed 2-0.
STOLLBERG DITCH:

David K. Zengler: I have 3 bids for Stollberg Ditch.

Elliott’s Excavating total of $39,800.00.

Bigge Excavation bid for Stollberg Ditch $26,684.00.

Jerry Aigner Construction Stollberg Ditch $54,400.00.

Tim Mosbey: What’s your pleasure? Same way?

Art Noffsinger: Actually on this one we’re all over the place. I move that we approve Bigge Construction on this one.

Tim Mosbey: Okay I’ll second that.

Motion was made and seconded to accept Bigge Excavating’s bid for $26,684.00. Motion passed 2-0.

DRAINAGE PLAN APPROVAL:

THREE LAKES ESTATES SUBDIVISION:

Tim Mosbey: Next on the agenda is the drainage approval for Three Lakes Estates.

There was a question from the audience about the bids on Bluegrass Creek.

Art Noffsinger: The question I had was that we received 5 bids and 4 out of the 5 were right in line with each other and yours (Bigge Excavating) was so low I just want to make sure that we had everything covered, I want to protect you and us as well to make sure that there is not something missing.
Tim Mosbey: We will be voting on that Friday.

Phil Baxter: This needs to be tabled until the next meeting simply because the Commissioner Meeting was postponed today.

Tim Mosbey: I make a motion we table the Three Lakes Subdivision until the March 23, 2009 meeting.

Art: Second

Motion was made and seconded to table Three Lakes. Motion passed 2-0.

CLAIMS:

Tim Mosbey: Next on the agenda is claims and you should have a list of them in front of you.
Phil: We have claims in the amount of $226.32.

Art Noffsinger: I move that we approve the claims of $226.32.

Tim : Second

Motion was made and seconded to pay claims. Motion passed 2-0.

OTHER BUSINESS:

Tim Mosbey: Other business on the Drainage Board. Any other business.

Phil Baxter: I may have something later but go ahead with Storm Water.

DEPARTMENT OF STORM WATER MANAGEMENT:

Tim Mosbey: Okay we will move into Storm Water. First item Payment request, Mr. Howard.

PAYMENT REQUEST FROM HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT-STORM CLEAN UP:

Bobby Howard: Mr. Roach did send me an invoice for the storm cleanup in the amount of $150,507.00 that he is asking to be paid out of Storm Water Management and I am requesting approval at this time.

Tim Mosbey: Any questions or comments? Do I hear a motion?

Art Noffsinger: I move that we…..you’re comfortable with that, Bobby?

Bobby: We have the funds available.

Art: I move that we approve the claims.

Tim : I second.

Motion was made and seconded to pay Highway Department $150,507.00. Motion passed 3-0.

Tim Mosbey: When the money comes in from FEMA then we’ll put it back in this account.
STORM SEWER FLUSHING MACHINE QUOTES:

Tim Mosbey: Second item is quotes for storm sewer flushing machine.

Bobby Howard: At a meeting I believe in February I brought up I think that we were looking into this a few years ago at our highway department, a flushing machine for some of our storm sewer systems, we have had several instances where there are roots or debris in the lines and this would be a machine that we would be able to clean them out. I just received one quote this morning and I would like to review it a little closer to make sure that they are in line with each other. The first quote that I received from O’Brian Manufacturing is a demo unit that has under 10 hours on the unit and the total cost is $41,078.00. The other quote is from Jack Dougheny Supplies, this is similar to a machine that the Town of Chandler recently purchased and his quote for the base unit is $49,553.00 and that is for a new machine. I don’t think he had anything demo available at that time and then there is some optional equipment that he did spec on this is a auto level wind with hydraulic up down for the operator to better control the hose and he is quoting that as another $3,960.00 on top of the $49,553.00 and I believe that the gentlemen with O’Brian said that was included in with his $41,000.00 bid. So I want to follow up with that before we act on this.
Tim Mosbey: Would you like to table this to the 23rd that gives you a couple of weeks.

Bobby: Yes, I just wanted to bring it up for your information so you would know where it stands. Those are the only two bids and it is hard to find companies around here that do this kind of stuff.

Tim Mosbey: Where did Chandler get theirs?

Bobby: From the Jack Dougheny Supplies.

Tim Mosbey: I will move that we table this until the 23rd.

Art: Second

Motion was made and seconded to table. Motion passed 3-0.

CITIZEN REQUESTS:

Tim Mosbey: Citizens request, do we have any citizens that want to approach the board, we have hands up everywhere.  John

John Wilson: My name is John Wilson and I talked to some people about that I want to talk about the storm water management taxes reduced and I am on disability. My property taxes is half already and what I have asked for is for storm water management to reduce to half I think since my property taxes are half I would like to see storm water management reduced to half, thank you. I don’t know what else I need. I’ve already talked to 3 lawyers and he’s one of them.

Tim Mosbey: Yes John that’s fine for Art’s benefit John is on disability. I checked with the County Auditor and in the State of Indiana people on disability have a $12,400.00 deduction on their property taxes which results in his being 50% off his request is he feels like his storm water $60.00 a year fee should be addressed the same way 50% off. And I’ve talked to him on the phone numerous times on this issue and we have talked to the attorneys. From what I have found out from Mr. Zengler and from Doug Welp this is something as the Board of Commissioners who are also the Storm Water Board we can address this if we so wish and legally, I want to make sure I say this right, change the ordinance that was created last year by the previous when they came up with the Storm Water Ordinance.
John Wilson: I talked to Greg and Greg was the one that was good too.

Tim Mosbey: Greg Granger is the County Attorney and he spoke with him, you know so it’s up to the Board of Commissioners and I for one I’m willing to discuss it and see what we can legally……..

Bobby Howard: Then it would have to go to County Council for approval.

Tim Mosbey: It would have to go to Council with our request. I want you to understand that it is a step by step process.

John Wilson: I know I have already talked to Ray McIntyre and he said he wished he would never signed for churches to have it right now, I talked to him last week and we got into a little argument about it and he said he wished he would never signed for churches now because if you only got so much you get from the church it’s no different than you get from disability and it say you don’t pay enough, if people don’t come up with enough money they are going to shut the church down or you are going to lose your electric.
Tim Mosbey: And remember Ray is only one of seven members.

John: I’m just saying he got onto me because I asked him to vote about it and he wished he had never voted now for it.

Tim: But at this time now John we will progress and try to, I don’t know which attorney will have to work with, Council Attorney or Mr. Zengler……..

David Zengler: Well we would have to like you said amend the ordinance so which would start here.

John: Well, I talked to Greg and he said you could by-pass them for that to do it.

Tim: Legally from what I can find out I don’t know how we could…..the deduction you presently get on your property taxes is controlled by the State of Indiana and is just sent down to the County. This is something that the County has created and how……

John: Right, I talked to Greg and he said if we wouldn’t have by-passed the different name on it and left it the same as our taxes we could have the same as what we got.

Tim: Well, we couldn’t do that because it’s a utility fee.

John: Well, that is why they did it so they could try to hide the money and that is where the problem is.

Tim: I respect your opinion. So give us time we will address it.

Okay more citizen request, is this request or comments

Jerry Aigner: Comments a little bit of both I guess. Jerry Aigner with Aigner Excavating.

Kenny Elliott: Kenny Elliott with Elliott Excavating. We just have some questions on the bidding and on the process of work being done. I know this Board wasn’t on the last go around. We don’t think the last job was done according to how the specs and…I wasn’t at the pre-bid meeting, he was and my son was there but from what I understand there was a whole lot more that should have been done to Pigeon Creek than what was done to it.
Tim Mosbey: According to the specs.

Podium Speaker: Yes to the specs and to the eye.

Tim Mosbey: I have to look over to these two gentlemen.

Podium: There was somebody different here then.

Tim: Well, I realize that, but they have the specs to look at.

Podium: Phil was on this Board, but you were here as Commissioner.

Phil Baxter: Yes, we didn’t have any specs, we finally found the specs later this year, at the time when it was bid the Commissioners didn’t have any specs which these guys have got specs and if you go through what we’ve got it was very vague, everything should have been marked…..
Podium: Everything else probably should have been marked but it wasn’t but that’s the reason that he can outbid us so much cheaper too.

John Wilson: Well, I’d like to say something too, I was over there with that guy and me and Blaine was fishing right beside them and all them trees down through there where Stahl’s had that ground is digging them out and I mean we was fishing the whole time what I’m trying to say is you guys need to put some green stuff because it has washed out, we went fishing yesterday and it had washed out bad. I don’t know if you guys are going to open that dirt out to Stahls and Hendrickson’s cows that’s why he hasn’t done it yet because if it washes it out the cows are going to have to go.
Phil: I think that is a different location, a different ditch.

Mr. Wilson kept talking about putting plastic down so Mr. Mosbey told him they were talking about Pigeon Creek.

Tim Mosbey: Gentlemen, all I can I mean you guys know I’m new at this game too and I just have to have faith in the Surveyor and his sidekick there that the specs will be totally followed I think in all fairness to every contractor that bids. You’ve sat in this chair before too Jerry, what would you say?

Jerry Aigner: The last four years I quit bidding, Stradtner quit bidding and then Kenny just started bidding a few months ago and so I’ve watched right before Christmas because there were some jobs coming up that we were interested in bidding. We’ve got people living in Selvin, Tennyson and Lynnville right now sitting at home so I started bidding because its winter work and it’s when we do this. It’s good for the County to get good low bids I mean you can see these bids right here I mean we were pretty close, $24,000, $22,000, $23,000, $28,000 and then you get a $12,000 in there that says something. I looked at that ditch and we’ve done a ditch with Rod before just like we’re doing and I know what that amounts to and I think that’s going to be pretty tough to do that right for $12,000.00. I’ve set at your seat before and we’ve not always gave it to the low guy, but I’d like for you to give it to him but I’m telling you, you can’t barely buy diesel fuel and take care of your help for $12,000.00 on that ditch if you do it the way I think Rob wants us to do it.
Tim Mosbey: And I have enough faith in Rod and Phil, I think they’ll make him do it according to specs won’t you?

Phil: If you’ve noticed and read these specs they are pretty plain and the specs will be followed and in fact that was mentioned at the pre-bid right, Rod.

Rod: Yes

Phil: And Darren has talked to Rod a couple of times since then I know, we’ve talked to Kenny and some others so that is just the way it’s going to be. I can see the same thing it’s 50%.
Tim: I agree I was shocked at the difference, everybody buys their fuel locally and the labor……

Podium: Well, he’s had…if you look at the records how much work he’s had here in this county the last 4 years, it’s all of it, it is all of it. I don’t know hardly anybody that’s beat him, I did get one job a little $4,000.00 job I think it is I have to do for the county.

Tim Mosbey: And in the past 4 years has he been doing according to specs…well you guys don’t know.

Podium: We’ve got the specs here, I mean and I was at that pre-bid meeting….I mean the one we just all bid (Pigeon Creek) evidently no body inspected the job and I mean that’s pretty poor that is one of the biggest jobs the county has done for a long time. He bid $1.70 a foot and what was it over 10,000 feet no more than that, 80,000 feet. It don’t matter it was a long ways, the longest ditch we’ve ever done in this county.

Podium: I know the specs are kind of vague on it but it does say that a lot of the trees that was any stumps or anything was undermined, undercut where the roots was supposed to come out.

Tim Mosbey: Where the roots were exposed?

Podium: Yes

Art Noffsinger: Did they come out?

Podium: I can go to Hwy 68 and look down and see, look down Heim Road, Stevenson Station Road, there are four places you can see from the road and you can go to Millersburgh and set on the road and look at the ditch.

Tim Mosbey: Has he gotten paid for that job yet?

Phil: Yes

Podium: That’s what bothers me is we pay him bang bang bang bang bang.

I mean he finished this job before all these guys came in before you even took office didn’t he?

Phil: Yes

Tim Mosbey: I understand your concern and I think that is a result of the table that we’re going to look at this.

Podium: Kenny and I pay drainage taxes but not only do we work in this county, we pay drainage taxes in this county and so I would like for the contractor that this Board hires that they do the job like they should be done, but we are comparable and we can do the work right and we’ve worked with you guys before and I’m not saying Henry can’t, I wish he was here as he would have an answer I’m sure but I can take him out and show him because I walked that whole ditch with Scott who was representing the Drainage Board at the time and it said any tree that was leaning. So we went out and ask what do call a leaning tree and we took paint and when he said that was leaning and so we…I said we walked the whole ditch we didn’t walk the whole ditch with him but I walked or rode the whole ditch and I wrote down how many trees was leaning and I figured well we’re going to have to get a guy on that side with a chain saw to cut them off and let them fall across the creek and it’s on the east side. If you want to ride down the east side of that ditch and look your county over you can see how many spaces you’ll see has been cut off and is undermined and you won’t see to many of them.
Podium: He told us right back there a while ago, he said I wasn’t supposed to do anything on the east side of the ditch. But that’s where it said on the east side anything that was leaning. We asked Scott what he call leaning, I spent a lot of time bidding that job but I’m sure now things are going to be different but we just want to go down on record that I’ve watched it for 4 years and am sort of fed up with it but you know what do you do. So we got it off our chest and I’m sure you guys will take care of us now.

Tim Mosbey: And what do we do we’re spending the tax payers dollars so we look at the low bid, we accept the low bid as long as they do the job according to the specs that are written down. So that’s up to these guys to let us know……

Podium: Pigeon Creek wasn’t done according to these specs, I can just show……

Tim Mosbey: Well, I would hope to see Pigeon Creek re-bid in the next year or two in my own opinion it needs to be re-done, not because of him but because of the ice storm, it’s worse than what it was before he started. There are a lot of trees across that creek.

Is there anything else, any other citizen comments?

PURCHASE OF BUSHHOG:

Phil Baxter: I’ve got three prices on that side by side, $6,100.00, $11,500.00 and the other one is $9,500.00. I’d like to go with the bush hog for $6,100.00.
Tim: If that’s what you’re recommending, is there enough funding?

Phil: Well, I have to transfer it but it’s there.

Tim: So you get to go to Council, do you need a motion on that.

Phil: Yes, if you would.

Art Noffsinger: I move that we approve the purchase of the bush hog for $6,100.00

Tim: Is that $6,100.00 even?  It was answered yes. I’ll second that.

Motion was made and seconded to approve purchase of bush hog. Motion passed 2-0.

Tim Mosbey: Any other comments?

John Wilson: The only thing I have a question is on Phillips Road over there they had Huffman do all the work there then whenever Doug or Don Hendrickson got there on this side they stopped, then on the other side of the cows they stopped. But on the other side they done all that work I don’t understand what the difference is of it.
Tim Mosbey: Check with the Highway Department and see what they’re up to, that is not our……

John Wilson: The only reason I know what it is I’m big on farming when I was young and I think the only reason is if they’ve got to cut them fences down through there them trees Don is going to have to move his fence over and I know that is part of what stops them is their cows there. ( He talked about some other roads)

Tim Mosbey: We’ll check with the Highway Department that is not this Board’s business.

Anything else?

Art Noffsinger: I move that we adjourn.

David Zengler: Are you meeting again on Friday, is that what you’re going to do?

Tim Mosbey: Just for this one bid, that is the only item of business.
David: Okay then lets not adjourn, just recess.

Art Noffsinger: I move that we recess until Friday Morning at 9:00 A.M.

Tim: Second

Motion was made and seconded to recess. Motion passed 2-0.
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